From: Wentz, Vilson <vilson.wentz@dana.com>

Sent: Monday, July 13, 2020 2:37 PM

To: jcooper@cranecarrier.com

Cc: Goldston, Bob; Nickell, Lewis

Subject: ACTION REQUIRED: NOTICE OF VOLUNTARY SAFETY RECALL.

Attachments: Output Shaft 573 OE _Signed.pdf; Work Instruction for Inspection of Suspected Output Shaft
(002).PPTX; 46k Heavy Output Replacement.pdf; Ouput Shaft_Supect Serial Numbers List - Crane
Carrier.xlsx

Dear Jeremy Cooper,

Dana, Inc., in conjunction with the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (“NHTSA”), is conducting a voluntary
safety recall of certain drive axles manufactured for commercial vehicles. The axles subject to this notice were
manufactured between November 19, 2019 and December 5, 2019, with the part number 131536.

Dana is conducting this recall to address the potential for certain output shafts in rear drive axles to fracture at the
transition of the shaft splines to the thread. In such an event, the shaft or interaxle driveline could detach from the
vehicle and cause an accident or injury.

Our records reflect that CRANE CARRIER received 02 units within the scope of this notice. Our records also reflect that
02 units remain in need of this recall remedy.

Please find attached a notification letter for this voluntary recall, accompanied by technical work instructions, as well as
the list of serial numbers in your inventory subject to this notice. Please contact us right away if you have a different
record of the units in your inventory that remain in need of the recall remedy.

Any questions or concerns, please contact me or “Dana Real Time Warranty” at 877-777-5360.

I’'m sorry for any inconvenience and thanks for you cooperation.

Vilson Wentz

Global Quality Director,

Dana Commercial Vehicle
Mobile: +1(419) 206-9496
Office: +1(419) 887-3029
Email: vilson.wentz@dana.com




Legally Privileged & Confidential Drafft.

July 13, 2020

SAFETY RECALL NOTICE
ACTION REQUIRED

Re: Dana, Inc., NHTSA Recall # 20E038
Dear [OE}:

Dana, Inc. (“Dana”), in conjunction with the National Highway Traffic Safety
Administration (“NHTSA”), is conducting a voluntary safety recall of certain drive axles
manufactured for commercial vehicles. The axles subject to this notice were manufactured
between November 19, 2019 and December 5, 2019, with the part number 131536.

Dana is conducting this recall to address the potential for certain output shafts in rear
drive axles to fracture at the transition of the shaft splines to the thread. In such an event, the
shaft or interaxle driveline could detach from the vehicle and cause an accident or injury.

If you have within your inventory any axles subject to this notice that have not already
been replaced, please promptly contact Dana Real Time Warranty at 877-777-5360. At no
charge to you, Dana will arrange for return of any recalled axles, and will provide replacement
axles. Replacement a\;ﬁes will be available within one (1) to two (2) weeks of this notice.
Complete directions for replacing the recalled axle are attached hereto as Attachment A. If you
need assistance replacing a recalled axle, please notify Dana Real Time Warranty at 877-777-

5360.

If you have sold any recalled axles to any dealers or distributors, you must send
them a copy of this notification letter, along with its attachment, within five (5) working
days of your receipt of this notice. If you have sold vehicles equipped with recalled axles to
any end-users, please immediately contact your customer service representative.

Please note that it is a violation of Federal law for a dealer to deliver a new motor vehicle
or any new or used item of motor vehicle equipment covered by this notification until the issue
described in this notice has been remedied.

We regret this inconvenience. We at Dana are committed to the highest standards of
safety and product quality, and our interest is in our customers’ safety and satisfaction with their
equipment. We look forward to working with you to enable this recall to be completed in a
timely manner with minimal disruption to you or your customers. Thank you.

Sincerely,
Lonnie Holmquist
Dana Inc.

Vice President of Global Quality
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Inspection Work Instructions for Output Shaft 131536

Output Shaft

1: From list of covered axles, inspect Julian date stamped on output shaft area. See
Image

2: Identify with yellow tag all axles that are found with JD312, JD318, JD319, JD320,
JD321, JD322, JD323, JD324, JD325, JD326, JD327, JD328. See image

3: Segregate as NG all axles identified with yellow tags.

© 2019 Dana 2
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Output Shaft Assembly & Rear

Cover

Housing and Output Shaft Assembly - Parts Exploded View

1 - Output shaft nut 10 - Rear cover 19 - Axle housing

2 - Output yoke 11 - Rear cover capscrew 20 - Breather

3 - Output seal 12 - Fill plug 21 - Breather hose

4 - Snap ring 13 - Rear cover nut 22 - Carrier capscrew
5 - Quter bearing cup 14 - Washer 23 - Nut

6 - Outer bearing cone 15 - Stud 24 - Washer

7 - Inner bearing cone 16 - Spindle nut - Outer 25 - Stud

8 - Inner bearing cup 17 - Locking ring 26 - Drain plug

9 - Output shaft 18 - Spindle nut - Inner 27 - Axle shaft
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Output Shaft Assembly & Rear

Cover

Remove Output Shaft Assembly

Note: For forward axle rear covers that are removable the out- 6. Remove output shaft and outer bearing cup as an
put shaft may be removed when the cover is in or out of assembly.
the axle assembly.

1. Disconnect the inter-axle driveline at the forward
axle rear cover position.

2. Remove yoke nut (shoulder nut).

3. Remove yoke from output shaft using appropriate
tool.
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1 - Yoke Puller Tool

1 - Snap Ring

2 - Outer Bearing Cup

3 - Output Shaft Assembly
4 - Inner Bearing Cup

5 - Rear Cover Assembly
4. Remove oil seal. 6 - Output Seal

TIP: A yoke puller tool may be made from the center
section of most gear puller tools, or may be pur-
chased from your tool distributor.

5. Remove snap fing. TIP: It may be helpful to loosely reinstall the yoke

and shoulder nut giving the technician more of an
area to grip when removing the output shaft.

7. Remove the inner bearing cup from rear cover
assembly. This may be removed from inside the axle
housing when the carrier is removed, or by removal
of the forward axle rear cover.
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Output Shaft Assembly & Rear

Cover

60

8. Remove both inner and outer bearing from output 9. Remove output shaft inner bearing cup.

shaft.
Note: Components such as the inter-axle driveline, yoke, oil

‘/1 seal and output shaft assembly should have been
removed according to normal service procedures.

| Removing the differential assembly from the axle

housing is not necessary, but would ease the removal

process of the inner bearing cup from the cover bore.

a. Using a bearing puller tool, remove the inner bearing
cup.

b. Visually inspect the inner-machined bore surface of
the welded-on cover for nicks and burrs. Repair if
necessary.

1- Press



Output Shaft Assembly & Rear

Cover

Overhaul and Assemble Output Shaft Assembly

Note: Lubricate the parts with gear lube during assembly.

1. The output shaft bearings are assembled with both
bearing cones back to back. Use a press and a sleeve
to install one bearing at a time.

| A CAUTION |

To prevent bearing damage, use a suitable sleeve that only
contacts the bearing race.

2. Apply pressure until the inner bearing cone touches
the shoulder of the output shaft.

3. Apply pressure until the back of the outer bearing
cone touches the back of the inner bearing.

Note: Axle housings with welded-on covers procured through
service will include the inner bearing cup as part of the
“service” axle housing assembly. Go to Step 6 if the inner
cup has already been installed.

4, Lightly coat the output bore of the axle housing
cover with a 9.5 mm (.38") wide application of Loc-
tite 680 where the bore contacts the inner bearing
cup. Do not apply Loctite outside of this area—to the
bearing rollers or outboard of the inner cup bore.
Improper application of the Loctite could lock the
rollers or cause excessive pre-load.

| A CAUTION |

Add Loctite adhesive to the inner bearing surface of the
housing and NOT to the bearing race itself. If added to the
race, excessive adhesive could get on the surface of the
outer bearing race journal during installation and cure the
outer cap in place with excessive pre-load.

5. Using a sleeve and driver (hammer), install the inner
bearing cup.

6. Put the output shaft and bearing assembly into the
axle housing assembly.

7. Using a sleeve and driver (hammer), install the outer
bearing cup into the housing assembly over the out-
put shaft bearing cone.

8. Using snap ring pliers, install the snap ring that fas-
tens the outer bearing cup into the welded-on cover
assembly.

9. Check the endplay of the output shaft. New assem-
blies should measure 0.001" to 0.045" (0.03 to 1.143
mm).

Note: Use the bearing cup driver to insure seating of snap
ring after installation with snap ring pliers.
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1 - Press
2 - Plate
3 - Sleeve

4 - Press Bearing on Second
5 - Press Bearing on First

6 - Output Shaft

7 - Plate
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Output Shaft Assembly & Rear

Cover

10. Bolted rear cover only: If removed, install cover and
fasten with nuts, capscrews and lock washers.
Tighten to proper torque specifications. See the
Torque Chart.

Note: Use Spicer approved RTV compound on axle housing
mating surface. Completely remove all old gasket material
prior to applying new material. Compound will set in
20 minutes. Install axle housing cover and output shaft
assembly before compound sets or reapply.

11. Install the output seal.
12. Install output yoke.
Note: Use of a torque multiplier is recommended.
TIP: If you can't get the correct torque on yoke nut,

try torquing the nut with the truck wheels on the
ground and with the axle shafts installed.

13. Install axle shafts and axle stud nuts (If used, also
install lock washers and taper dowels).

1 - Snap Ring

2 - Bearing Cup

3 - Output Shaft Assembly
4 - Inner Bearing Cup

5 - Rear Cover Assembly 15. Add axle lubricant. Fill to bottom of filler hole.

14. Connect inter-axle driveline. Make sure driveline is
properly phased. Lubricate u-joints.

6 - Output Seal

I A INPORTANT |

When axle has been disassembled or housing, axle shafts
or wheel equipment replaced, check axle assembly for
proper differential actions before operating vehicle. Wheels
must rotate freely and independently.

Road test vehicle to bring axle lubricant up to temperature.
Recheck joints, drain and fill plugs for leakage. Retighten as
necessary.



Output Shaft Assembly & Rear

Cover

Measure

Correct endplay for a new assembly is 0.001" to 0.045" [0.03
to 1.143 mm]. The maximum endplay for a used assembly

is no more than 0.045" (1.143 mm). If endplay is incorrect,
contact Dana.

1. Install oil seal.
2. Install yoke.

3. Install yoke nut. One of the following options may be
utilized:

a. Install a new nut with the pre-applied thread
adhesive compound. Tighten the nut to the
specified torque. See the Torque Chart.
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b. If a new nut with pre-applied thread adhesive
compound is unavailable, apply Loctite 277 or
271 (available in 0.5 ml tube—P/N 129293)
to the nut along two threads, for at least two
flats (120°) of the nut midway through the
thickness (see illustration). Tighten the nut
to the specified torque. See the Torque Chart.
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Seal - Replace

Replace Seal

Spicer strongly recommends using seal drivers when installing
new seals. Use the proper driver to make sure that the seal is
square and installed to the proper depth.

I A CAUTION |

0Oil seals can be easily damaged prior to installation. Use
care when handling the new seal to prevent damage or con-
tamination. Leave the seal in its package until installation.
On new yokes, leave the protector on the yoke until it is
installed on the shaft to prevent damage or contamination.

1. Inspect axle endplay at the yoke (see page 10). Service
if beyond specified limit.

2. Remove the old yoke using appropriate tool. A yoke
puller tool may be made from the center section of
most gear puller tools, or may be purchased from
your local tool distributor.

1 - Yoke Puller Tool

3. Remove seal. Use care when removing the old seal
to prevent damage to the housing seal bore.

4. Inspect the seal bore area for any damage (nicks,
gouges, corrosion). Carefully remove any slight
damage with a crocus cloth. Clean the bore area to
remove any loose debris.
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| A _CAUTION |

Do not use any silicone or permatex-type bore sealant with
this seal.

5. Remove the new seal from its package and install
with the proper driver:
D - Input Driver - 210749
D - Input Insert - 131472
D - Output Driver - 131471
R - Pinion Driver - 210749
R - Pinion Insert - 131472

I A WARNING |

Due to the resiliency of the plastic driver, hammer rebound
may occur when the seal is seated. Keep clear of the hammer
rebound path!

6. Handle the seal by its outside diameter avoiding any
contact with the seal lips. During installation, use the
proper driver to make sure that the seal is mounted

properly.

7. Use a rubber mallet to drive the seal tool in until the
flange bottoms on the housing cover bore face. The
flange will locate the seal at the proper depth.




Seal - Replace

Guidelines for Reusing Yoke

| A CAUTION |

Do not use the yoke if it has any damage on the seal surface
(nicks or scratches).

The surface of the yoke and the lips of the seal form a critical
interface which retains the axle’s lubricant while sealing the
axle from outside contaminants. The condition of the yoke
hub’s surface is a very important factor in determining seal
life.

Carefully inspect the seal surface area of the yoke hub for

signs of wear and damage. Do not reuse the yoke if there is
noticeable wear, such as heavy grooving, beyond normal polishing
from the seal lips.

Note: Do not rework the yoke with abrasives such as emery
paper or crocus cloth. Clean the surface of the yoke as
necessary using chemical cleaners. Remove all trace of
the chemicals from the yoke after cleaning.

I A CAUTION |

Do not use wear sleeves. Wear sleeves increase the yoke
hub surface diameter and cause premature seal wear and
repeat seal failure.
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Fastener Torque Specifications

Fastener Torque Specifications

Location Size Lbs. Ft. Nem
POWER DIVIDER
Input Cage Locking Bolt M8 x 1.0 x 30 13 +17 17 + 23 .g’ éﬂ
Input Cage Locking Stud M12 x 1.75 15+ 20 20 27 % g
Locking Stud Jam Nut M12 x 1.75 60 +65 81+88 §_. g.
IAD Shift End Cap 2.375 - 16 UN-2A 65+ 10 85+ 15 % g
Power Divider Cover Capscrews M14x1.5x 45 175+ 10 235+10
Input Shaft Nut M48 x 1.5 900 + 100 1220 + 135
WHEEL DIFFERENTIAL AND GEARING
Front Pinion Helical Nut M48 x 1.5 900 =100 1220 =135
Output Shaft Nut M42 x 1.5 900 = 100 1220 = 135
Rear Pinion Nut M48 x 1.5 900 = 100 1220 + 135
Ring Gear, Diff. Case Bolts M20 x 1.5 x 55 500 + 25 675+ 30
CARRIER
Carrier Diff. Bearing Cap M18 x 1.5 x 85 265 + 15 360 + 20
Carrier to Housing Capscrews M16 x 1.5 x 85 250+ 15 335+ 20
M16 x 1.5 x 55 250 + 15 33520
Carrier to Housing Nuts M16 x 1.5 250 =15 335+20
Pilot Bearing Web M16 x 1.5x 70 210+ 10 285+ 15
Differential Lock Switch M14x 1.5 10+ 1 15+3
Differential Lock End Cap 2.375 - 16 UN-2A 65+ 10 85+15
HOUSING
Rear Cover Capscrews M16 x 1.5x 70 250+ 15 335+20
M16 x 1.5 x 55 250 = 15 335+20
Rear Cover Nuts M16 x 1.5 250+ 15 335+ 20
Magnetic Plug (Fill) 1 x 11.5 NPTF 50+5 72+5
Drain Plug 0.750 - 14 NPTF 50+5 72+5
Housing Breather 0.375 - 18 NPTF 20 - 26 27 - 35
Temperature Sending Plug 0.500 - 20 NPTF 50+5 72+5
Axle Shaft to Wheel Hub Nut 0.625-18 180 = 10 245 +15
0.750 - 16 315+ 30 425 + 40
Wheel Diff. Lock Caps 2.37-16UN 2A 65=10 85+ 15
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For spec'ing or service assistance, call 1-877-777-5360 or visit our website at www.dana.com

Dana Commercial Vehicle Products Group

3939 Technology Drive @
Maumee, Ohio, L);SAI13537 @ SP ' CER :

o Drivetrain Products
www.dana.com

All applications must be approved by the Application Engineering Department. Specifications and/or design are subject to change without notice or obligation. Printed in USA ~ AXSM-0057 09/13



serialnumber customername customershiptolocation  scheduleshipdate
HNO7837409 CRANE CARRIER COMPANY HINE_NE_OH 27-NOV-19
HNO07837410 CRANE CARRIER COMPANY HINE_NE_OH 27-NOV-19



customerponumber  assembly description model
199478 7127801 CRANE SCAB HD D46-170HP 557 ABS AC D46-170HP
199478 7127801 CRANE SCAB HD D46-170HP 557 ABS AC D46-170HP



a_importtime
11/26/2019
11/26/2019
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